
Cabinet 
 
  

 
Please contact: Emma Denny 
 
Please email: emma.denny@north-norfolk.gov.uk 
Please Direct Dial on: 01263 516010 
 
Friday, 1 July 2022 
 
A meeting of the Cabinet of North Norfolk District Council will be held in the Council Chamber - Council 
Offices on Monday, 11 July 2022 at 10.00 am. 
 
 
At the discretion of the Chairman, a short break will be taken after the meeting has been running for 
approximately one and a half hours 
 

Members of the public who wish to ask a question or speak on an agenda item are requested to arrive at 
least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting. This is to allow time for the Committee Chair to 
rearrange the order of items on the agenda for the convenience of members of the public. Further 
information on the procedure for public speaking can be obtained from Democratic Services, Tel:01263 
516010, Email:emma.denny@north-norfolk.gov.uk. 
 
This meeting will be broadcast live to YouTube and will be capable of repeated viewing: NNDC 
eDemocracy - YouTube. The entirety of the meeting will be filmed except for confidential or exempt 
items. If you attend the meeting and make a representation you will be deemed to have consented to 
being filmed and that the images and sound recordings could be used for webcasting/ training purposes. 
 
Anyone attending this meeting may take photographs, film or audio-record the proceedings and report 
on the meeting.  Anyone wishing to do so should inform the Chairman. 

 
 
 
Emma Denny 
Democratic Services Manager 
 
To: Mrs W Fredericks, Mrs A Fitch-Tillett, Ms V Gay, Mr R Kershaw, Mr N Lloyd, Mr E Seward, 
Miss L Shires, Mr T Adams and Mr A Brown 
 
All other Members of the Council for information. 
Members of the Management Team, appropriate Officers, Press and Public 

 

If you have any special requirements in order 
to attend this meeting, please let us know in advance 

If you would like any document in large print, audio, Braille, alternative format or in 
a different language please contact us 

 
Chief Executive: Steve Blatch 

Tel 01263 513811  Fax  01263 515042  Minicom  01263 516005 
Email  districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk  Web site  www.north-norfolk.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCsShJeAVZMS0kSWcz-WyEzg
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCsShJeAVZMS0kSWcz-WyEzg
mailto:districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk


A G E N D A 
 

1.   TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   MINUTES 
 

1 - 12 

 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on 06 June 2022.  
 

 

3.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS 
 

 

 To receive questions and statements from the public, if any. 
 

 

4.   ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS 
 

 

 To determine any other items of business which the Chairman decides 
should be considered as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 
100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 
 

 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

13 - 18 

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may 
have in any of the following items on the agenda. The Code of Conduct 
for Members requires that declarations include the nature of the interest 
and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest (see attached 
guidance and flowchart) 
 

 

6.   MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

 

 To receive oral questions from Members, if any 
 

 

7.   RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 

 The following matters were considered at the meeting of Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee on 15 June 2022 and although not formal 
recommendations, are reported through to Cabinet for information: 
 
MANAGING PERFORMANCE QUARTER 4 AND CUMULATIVELY 
FOR 2021/2022 
 
1. To revise and present new performance management framework 

data focusing on outcomes/issues and/or exceptions reporting and 
present at the September O&S meeting. 

 
2. To review the new performance management framework and agree 

on key outcomes/issues or exceptions reporting at September O&S 
meeting. 

 
 NNDC PERFORMANCE BENCHMARKING 
 
1. Use the CIPFA nearest neighbours comparator group.  
 
2. Report on a quarterly basis at the same time as the performance 

reporting.  
 

 



3. Seven key benchmarking areas to be included in the initial report as 
laid out in appendix 1. 

 
4. Performance areas are reviewed on a six-monthly basis.  
 
ENFORCEMENT UPDATE - JUNE 2022 
 
1. To request that Members are notified of all major enforcement action 

taken, or any significant progress made on cases within their wards, 
as outlined in the Member-Officer Protocol. 

 
8.    OFFICER DELEGATED DECISIONS - MAY TO JUNE 2022 

 
19 - 22 

 Summary: 
 
 
 
Options considered: 

This report details the decisions taken by 
Senior Officers under delegated powers from 
May to June 2022 
 
Not applicable. 
 

  

Recommendations: 
 
 
 
Reasons for  
Recommendations: 
 

To receive and note the report and the 
register of officer decisions taken under 
delegated powers. 
 
 
The Constitution: Chapter 6, Part 5, sections 
5.1 and 5.2. details the exercise of any power 
or function of the Council where waiting until a 
meeting of Council or a committee would 
disadvantage the Council. The Constitution 
requires that any exercise of such powers 
should be reported to the next meeting of 
Council, Cabinet or working party (as 
appropriate) 

 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
(Papers relied on to write the report, which do not contain exempt information and which 
are not published elsewhere) 
 

 

Delegated decision forms – as completed by the relevant officer 
  
 

 
  

Cabinet Member(s) 
All 
 

Ward(s) affected 
All 

Contact Officer, telephone number and email: 
Emma Denny, Democratic Services Manager, 01263 516010 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



9.   LEVELLING UP FUND ROUND 2 - SUBMISSION OF BIDS 
 

 

 To seek Cabinet’s endorsement of two submissions for Round Two of 
the Levelling Up Fund – one for Cromer and one for Fakenham. 
 
To allow as much time as possible for the bids to be finalised, full details 
will be shared at the meeting. Members and the public will have the 
opportunity to comment on the proposals ahead of the submission date 
(to be confirmed).  
 
 

 

10.   LONG LEASE AT MUNDESLEY PROMENADE AND DISPOSAL OF 
LAND AT BEESTON PUTTING GREEN, SHERINGHAM 
 

23 - 32 

 Summary: 
 
 
Options considered: 

This report outlines lease and disposal 
proposals in connection with the Councils land 
portfolio.  
 
An alternative option would be not to move 
forward with these transactions, however that 
would impact on these organisations being 
able to deliver services to the community.  
 

Conclusions: 
 

Officers have negotiated two property 
transactions that will enable services 
delivered to the community to be continued.   
  

Recommendations: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reasons for  
Recommendations: 
 

Officers recommend to Cabinet to approve the 
two property transactions as outlined in this 
report and the exempt appendix: 
1. 50 year lease of land for inshore lifeboat at 
Mundesley Promenade  
2. Disposal of land at Beeston Putting Green, 
Sheringham. 
 
For the continuation of community services 
within the district. 
 

  

Cabinet Member(s) 
Cllr Eric Seward  
 

Ward(s) affected 
Mundesley  
Sheringham  
 

Contact Officer, telephone number and email: Renata Garfoot.  Asset 
Strategy Manager.  Tel 01263 516086. Email. Renata.garfoot@north-
norfolk.gov.uk. 
 

 

11.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

 To pass the following resolution: 
“That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A (as 
amended) to the Act.” 

 



 
12.   PRIVATE BUSINESS 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on Monday, 6 June 2022 at the Council 
Chamber - Council Offices at 10.00 am 
 
Committee 
Members Present: 

 

 Mrs W Fredericks Mrs A Fitch-Tillett 
 Ms V Gay Mr R Kershaw 
 Mr N Lloyd Mr E Seward 
 Miss L Shires Mr J Toye 
 Mr T Adams (Chair)  
 
Members also 
attending: 

Cllr A Brown 
Cllr C Cushing 
Cllr N Dixon 
Cllr J Rest 

   
 
Officers in  
Attendance: 

 

 Chief Executive, Democratic Services Manager, Democratic Services 
and Governance Officer - Scrutiny, Director for Communities, 
Assistant Director for Finance, Assets, Legal & Monitoring Officer, 
Health and Communities Team Leader, Housing Strategy & 
Community Support and Policy and Performance Management 
Officer 

 
Also in 
attendance: 

Public 

 
 
  
1 MINUTES 

 
 The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 3rd May were approved as a correct 

record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

2 PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS 
 

 The Chairman advised members that he would re-arrange the order of the agenda to 
accommodate Mr McKeown, who wished to speak in relation to Agenda item 16 – 
Freehold Sale of Parklands Mobile Home Site. 
 
Mr McKeown said that he was speaking on behalf of the residents of Parklands 
Residential Homes site, Pudding Norton. He said that whilst the residents 
acknowledged that the Council was duty bound legally to obtain best value, it should 
be recognised that best value was not always delivered by the highest bidder. He 
added that residents were concerned about problems that had arisen at the 
Hardwick Park Homes site in Kings Lynn following its sale and sought reassurance 
that such issues would not occur at Parklands. In conclusion, he urged members to 
consider the options before them carefully and consider the residents too. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr McKeown and said that agenda item 16 would be brought 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



forward.   
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 None. 
 

4 ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS 
 

 None. 
 

5 MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

 The Chairman advised members that they could ask questions as matters arose. 
 

6 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CABINET WORKING PARTIES 
 

 The Chairman invited Cllr A Brown, Chairman of the Planning Policy & Built Heritage 
Working Party, to introduce this item. Cllr Brown explained that the Working Party 
had deferred approval of the Glaven Valley Conservation Area Appraisals until the 
May meeting to ensure that they were fully acceptable to members.  
 
He thanked officers for their hard work. The Portfolio Holder for Planning, Cllr J 
Toye, echoed Cllr Brown’s comments and thanked the officers for the considerable 
amount of work that they had put into this.  
 
It was proposed by Cllr J Toye, seconded by Cllr T Adams and 
  
RESOLVED  
 
1. That, subject to final amendments being delegated to the Conservation Design 
and Landscape Team Leader, in consultation with the Chairman of the Working 

Party, Cabinet adopts the six Glaven Valley Village Appraisals for statutory planning 

purposes and for the Appraisal documents to become material considerations in the 
planning process. 
2. That, subject to the final amendments being delegated to the Conservation 
Design and Landscape Team Leader, in consultation with the Chairman of the 
Working Party, Cabinet agrees the proposed boundary changes as recommended in 
the draft Appraisal documents and that they be published in accordance with the 
Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
3. That Cabinet agrees the proposed Local Listings as identified within the draft 
Appraisal documents. 
 

7 RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 The Chairman of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee, Cllr N Dixon, introduced this 
item. He outlined the three recommendations, highlighting the committee’s request 
for a member workshop to facilitate further discussion and input regarding the 
Engagement Strategy. He then spoke about the ‘Levelling up Fund, Round 2’ which 
had come to the committee as an item of urgent business. He said that he wanted to 
draw particular attention to the first recommendation which highlighted the 
importance of the process for promoting and preparing for short-notice funding 
streams, being transparent and objectively scored against agreed priorities as well 
as being fairly distributed across the District. He added that this fed into the second 
recommendation for linking into Town and Parish Councils. He concluded by saying 
that it was very disappointing that there were no proposals ready to go when such 

Page 2



funding rounds came up and the Council needed to be more prepared in future for 
such opportunities. 
 
The Chairman thanked him for his comments and said that the Changing Places 
funding was a good example of the Council being well prepared in advance to 
submit bids that reflected the Council’s ambitions. He acknowledged the challenges 
that had been presented by the Levelling up fund and said that he would welcome 
further discussions with Cllr Dixon on how to address such issues in the future.  
 

8 FREEHOLD SALE OF PARKLANDS MOBILE HOME SITE, PUDDING NORTON, 
FAKENHAM 
 

 The Chairman invited Cllr E Seward, Portfolio Holder for Finance and Assets, to 
introduce this item. He began by saying that it was recommended that the Council 
sold the site to Bidder C, adding that the bid was in accordance with independent 
market valuations. He then drew attention to paragraph 2, which set out in detail the 
disposal process and due diligence, adding that the Council was anxious to ensure 
that the site was sold to a buyer that was ‘fit and proper’ and that it would be 
properly managed in recognition that people’s homes were involved. He explained 
that a thorough process of due diligence was undertaken between October 2021 and 
February 2022, culminating with interviews with the bidders which were then scored.  
 
Cllr Seward added that if there had been any concerns at all about the highest 
bidder, being the most appropriate buyer, the Council could opt to use a Disposals 
Consent Order. The legal implications of opting for this route were set out at 
paragraph 7 and he thanked the legal team for their advice regarding this. 
 
In conclusion, Cllr Seward said that he was acutely aware of the challenges 
presented by mobile homes parks and how quickly things could go wrong if they 
were not well managed.   
 
Cllr J Rest sought clarification of the process which would be followed if a bidder 
wanted to come back with an increased offer. The Strategic Surveyor replied that all 
seven interested parties had been interviewed and following that, two indicated that 
they wished to submit a higher offer. All other parties were then notified of this and 
given a deadline to respond with a higher offer if they wished to. None did.  
 
It was proposed by Cllr E Seward, seconded by Cllr T Adams and   
 
RESOLVED 
 

To approve the sale of the site to Bidder [C] as outlined in the Exempt 
Appendix A at best consideration and in accordance with s123 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

 
Reason for the decision: 
 
The provision and operation of this site does not directly support any of the key 
themes contained with the Corporate Plan and is not part of the Council’s core 
business. Some of the asset therefore allows the capital receipt generated by the 
sale of the asset towards the Council’s corporate priorities 
 

9 NORTH NORFOLK SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES FUND ANNUAL REVIEW 
 

 Cllr V Gay, Portfolio Holder for Culture and Wellbeing introduced this item. She 

Page 3



explained that this was an annual report which summarised the work of the North 
Norfolk Sustainable Communities Fund, which was now in its second year of 
operation (having previously been the Big Society Fund).  
 
Cllr Gay said that it was a very illustrative report and highlighted the work of the 
panel. She added that she was concerned about the ‘gaps’ across the District, which 
indicated where no applications had been submitted to the Fund and she said she 
was keen to write to those parishes encouraging them to apply.  
 
The Chairman said that it was frustrating that the Council’s share of second homes 
council tax was no longer returned as this had been the main funding source for 
several years.  
 
Cllr R Kershaw said that he had promoted the fund to all of the parishes in his ward, 
adding that when applications were submitted they were very well handled by the 
team at NNDC. 
 
Cllr N Dixon said that he supported efforts to secure wider engagement with the fund 
from across the District. He asked whether there were any trends to be aware of 
when compared with previous years, adding that the town and parish councils were 
significant stakeholders and it was fundamental that they were encouraged to apply 
and engaged with the process.  
 
Cllr W Fredericks said that members had a responsibility to promote the fund. She 
suggested that the report was circulated to all members and they were asked to 
share it within their communities. 
 
Cllr C Cushing referenced the Big Society Fund which had started in 2013 and said 
it would be useful to compare the spread of grant awards and see if there were any 
key trends.  The Chief Executive replied that historic annual reports were available 
on the Council’s website but the comparative information could be collated if 
required. 
 
The Leader said that it was important to remember that it was not just town and 
parish councils that needed to be encouraged to apply to the fund, community 
groups were also important.  
 
Cllr J Toye said that it could be beneficial to link up successful applicants with those 
that were considering applying. It could be an effective way of encouraging more 
applications, particularly from smaller community groups and parishes. 
 
It was proposed by Cllr T Adams, seconded by Cllr R Kershaw and 
 
RESOLVED 
 
To receive the report and note the contribution that the NNSCF makes on 
Council priorities in respect of Quality of Life and Climate and Environment 
 
  
 

10 COUNCIL TAX ENERGY REBATE (DISCRETIONARY) SCHEME 
 

 Cllr W Fredericks, the Portfolio Holder for Housing & Benefits, introduced this item. 
She explained that the Government had announced the Council Tax Energy Rebate 
Scheme to provide a £150 non repayable rebate for eligible households in council 

Page 4



tax bands A-D and included discretionary funding for billing authorities to support 
households which were in need but not eligible for the rebate under the mandatory 
scheme. This report set out proposals to establish a scheme to provide support to 
such households. It was intended to be easy to administer to each eligible 
household and payments would be made in a timely manner. Cllr Fredericks 
concluded by thanking officers for their hard work in bringing the proposals together.  
 
It was proposed by Cllr T Adams, seconded by Cllr W Fredericks and  
 
RESOLVED 
 
To agree the scheme for the Council Tax Energy Rebate (Discretionary) 
scheme as detailed in Appendix 1.  
 
To delegate authority to the Section 151 Officer, or their deputy, in 
consultation with the Assistant Director for People Services and the Cabinet 
Member for Housing and Benefits, to make amendments to the scheme 
eligibility criteria and the amount of the discretionary award.  
 
Reason for the Recommendations: 
 
The Government is providing all billing authorities with discretionary funding to 
support other energy bill payers who are not eligible under the mandatory scheme 
for the £150 council tax rebate, and to provide carefully targeted “top-up” payments 
to the most vulnerable households in bands A-D.  
 
It is for each Local Authority to determine agreed guidelines setting out the eligibility 
criteria for their discretionary funding and have regard to government guidance. It is 
important to have a written scheme for North Norfolk District Council outlining these 
and the administration of support payments to provide clarity to individuals.  
 
The delegated authorities would ensure any required technical scheme amendments 
could be updated promptly where there is revised government guidance providing 
assurance to the scheme and also clarity to households. Any changes in eligibility 
criteria or the amount of discretionary awards could be changed quickly to ensure 
spending of the funding allocation is managed to maximise support to households in 
need and that the fund is not overspent 
 

11 DISCRETIONARY HARDSHIP & SUPPORT GRANT 
 

 Cllr W Fredericks, Portfolio Holder for Housing and Benefits, introduced this item. 
She explained that the People Services team at NNDC were focussing on ways to 
improve the targeting of support to those in the greatest need and the creation of a 
Discretionary Hardship would provide payments that could help to prevent further 
interventions being required. In the long term it was anticipated that the scheme 
would become a tool for support and resettlement to sustain vulnerable residents’ 
independence in the community. Cllr Fredericks explained that the scheme was 
unique to North Norfolk, there was no statutory requirement to provide hardship 
support in this way but it was felt that it would diversify and complement the support 
already provided by the Council. She concluded by thanking officers for their hard 
work in pulling the scheme together.  
 
Cllr J Toye referred to section 3.8 of the report which outlined resettlement support. 
He said he applauded the preventative, rather than reactive, approach of the 
scheme.  

Page 5



 
Cllr L Shires echoed Cllr Toye’s comments. She said she welcomed the reference to 
mental health issues within the eligibility criteria.  
 
The Chairman commented that he also welcomed the preventative aims of the 
proposals, adding that there would also need to be discussions with partners such 
as foodbanks to ensure support was co-ordinated and reaching everyone it needed 
to. 
 
Cllr J Rest asked whether there was an initial figure for how many people would 
benefit from this fund immediately. He said it would be useful if the Council could 
then monitor whether numbers of those requiring such support were going up or 
down. Cllr Fredericks replied that the grants would be distributed via the Social 
Prescribing team and the Early Help Hub. They were using the Council’s new 
‘poverty dashboard’ to identify eligible families and those on pension credit. She said 
that it would be monitored. Cllr Rest asked for regular updates – ideally monthly so 
that it could be closely monitored. 
 
Cllr Kershaw referred to paragraph 2.3 which set out the current number of residents 
considered to be eligible for the scheme. 
 
It was proposed by Cllr W Fredericks, seconded by Cllr T Adams and  
 
RESOLVED 
 
To agree the scheme for the Discretionary Hardship & Support Grant as 
detailed in Appendix 1.  
 
As this is a new scheme, monitoring and evaluating the impact of the scheme 
will be particularly important.  It is therefore requested that amendments to the 
scheme, where required, should be delegated to the Assistant Director for 
People Services. 
 
Reason for the recommendation: 
 
More households are facing extreme crisis situations due to experiencing the highest 
cost of living increase in 30 years and expecting further rises, and this may now be 
even higher due to the war in Ukraine. The financial pressures on households have 
also magnified following the cessation of Covid-19 support, such as the Coronavirus 
Job Retention Scheme (CJRS), and the Universal Credit uplift.   
 
In this precarious environment, the economic realities mean that many residents are 
more vulnerable than previously to acute financial shocks and are at risk of falling 
into crisis. It is more important than ever that we find new ways to support our 
residents.  
 
As we respond to these challenges, the Discretionary Hardship & Support Grant will 
provide support to vulnerable households who are in a crisis situation or require 
support to resettle or remain in the community.  
 
As part of the decision making process we will also be able to connect residents to 
support which can help them to find financial inclusion through budgeting and debt 
advice. 
 

12 CAR PARK CONSOLIDATION ORDER 2022 

Page 6



 
 Cllr E Seward, Portfolio Holder for Finance and Assets, introduced this item. He 

explained that Full Council had approved the revised car parking charges for 
2022/23 on 23 February. The consultation period had now closed and the report 
provided a summary of the objections that had been received. Cllr Seward said that 
the increase that the income generated from this increase would be £230k. He 
added that the Council was dependent on such income for providing a range of 
discretionary services – including public conveniences and the maintenance of parks 
and woodlands which were valued by both residents and visitors. He reminded 
members that the increase based on the consumer price index (CPI), adding that 
season ticket prices were frozen and continued to provide very good value for 
money.  
 
Cllr A Fitch-Tillett commented that coastal management was also a discretionary 
service.  
 
The Chairman referred to a small number of comments regarding motorcycle 
parking at Queen’s Road, Fakenham and asked whether this could be addressed.  
 
The Chief Executive outlined the main comments and objections that had been 
received during the consultation. Regarding Queen’s Road in Fakenham, he said 
that the Council was currently undertaking work to provide a new toilet block and it 
was possible that a motorcycle bay could be provided when the car park spaces 
were being re-lined. He then referred to the request to allow long-stay season tickets 
to use Staithe Street in Wells and said that as there were only 8 spaces, it was felt 
that this would have a detrimental impact on other users of the car park. 
 
It was proposed by Cllr E Seward, seconded by Cllr T Adams and 
 
RESOLVED 

 
1. To introduce the car parking consolidation order (as advertised) on 

Tuesday 5 July 2022. (Tariff changes will be downloaded to machines 
overnight of Monday 4 July 2022 after signage changes have taken place). 

2. To make the order   without modification (as above) but with the exception 
of retaining the restricted use of long stay season tickets on Albert St, Holt 
and Staithe street, Wells car parks. 

 
Reason for the recommendations: 
 
To complete the process of introducing changes to car parking tariffs. 
 

13 MANAGING PERFORMANCE QUARTER 4 AND CUMULATIVELY FOR 
2021/2022 
 

 The Chairman (and Leader), Cllr T Adams, introduced this item. He began by 
mentioning the impact of the ‘nutrient neutrality’ guidance on the provision of 
affordable housing. He said that he had considerable sympathy with those struggling 
to get decent housing for their families and like many members, much more of his 
ward work was centred around housing and social issues now. The cost of living 
crisis would only exacerbate such problems and Cllr Adams said that he welcomed 
the recent appointment of an Energy Officer. 
 
The Leader then spoke about the increase in new investment in the east of the 
District which would hopefully continue to grow and the continued achievements of 

Page 7



the Heritage Action Zone project in North Walsham. He highlighted the success of 
the tree planting programme over the winter season and it was on track to achieve 
its overall target in the next year. In conclusion, he spoke about the rising 
membership numbers at the Reef Leisure centre in Sheringham. The project had 
been a great success and was valued by both residents and visitors.  
 
Cllr J Toye, Portfolio Holder for Planning, said that the pressures on affordable 
housing provision were concerning and it was not yet clear how the nutrient 
neutrality guidance would impact on long term viability. He added that the Council 
was working hard to deliver affordable homes. The Leader said that North Norfolk 
had a greater mix of pressures on housing provision – including second homes.  He 
said that it would be helpful if the Council could deliver housing itself. 
 
Cllr C Cushing referred to the nutrient neutrality issue and asked when the Council 
would receive an update on the matter. The Leader replied that it was hoped to hear 
something in the next two weeks. Cllr Toye added that the guidance being issued by 
Natural England was not helpful. They were not offering solutions and that was 
exacerbating the problem. He said that himself and Cllr Brown attended cross-
authority working groups which were working hard to address the issues. The 
Leader added that other sectors were also being impacted including the construction 
industry, care homes and possibly seasonal camp sites. The Chief Executive replied 
that seasonal camp sites were not affected as they were limited to 28 days and were 
not permanent. He said that a consultant had been appointed to advise the Duty to 
Co-operate Forum and it was hoped that the position would be clearer by 
September.  
 
Cllr A Brown said that he had no issues with Natural England trying to improve the 
quality of water courses. The difficulty was regarding the lack of guidance being 
provided to local authorities on how to address the problems that it was presenting. 
 
Cllr J Rest referred to page 117 of the report and said that the toilets in the Queen’s 
Road car park, Fakenham would not be ready in June 2022 now as there was a 
delay due to power cable supply issues. 
 
It was proposed by Cllr T Adams, seconded by Cllr R Kershaw and 
 
RESOLVED  
 
To note the report and endorse the actions being taken by the Corporate 
Leadership Team as detailed in Appendix A. 
 
Reason for the decision: 
 
To ensure that the objectives of the Council are achieved.  
 

14 CHANGING PLACES PUBLIC CONVENIENCE INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 
JUNE 2022 
 

 The Portfolio Holder for Assets, Cllr E Seward, introduced this item. He explained 
that the report updated members in respect of a recent grant award of £300k by the 
Government to help support the provision of Changing Places facilities and made 
recommendations regarding further investment at the locations identified and 
updates to the capital programme to reflect the new funding stream. He drew 
members’ attention to section 10 of the report which outlined the financial and 
resource implications and highlighted ongoing discussions with the Museum of the 

Page 8



Broads in Stalham around siting a facility there. Cllr Seward concluded by saying 
that there was a possibility of a second round of funding and the Council may be 
able to apply again. The Chairman agreed, saying that it was hoped that some 
funding could be generated for the larger villages in the District. Cllr Fredericks, local 
member for Mundesley, said that that the village was pushing for a changing places 
facility due to the large footfall generated by visitors.  
 
Cllr J Toye commented that Cllr E Spagnola had championed the provision of 
‘changing places’ facilities across the District and she should be very proud of her 
achievements. It also demonstrated the value of member champions and how 
beneficial they were to the Council.  
 
Cllr N Dixon referred to section 5 of the report and asked whether there had been 
any discussions with Stalham Town Council around their preferred siting of changing 
places facilities. He then mentioned section 7 and asked whether consideration had 
been given to having discussions with parish council representatives from Hoveton, 
Potter Heigham, Horning, Ludham and Mundesley. He said that Hoveton, together 
with Wroxham, formed the major tourist centre of the Broads and there could be a 
case for working with Broadland District Council to deliver key public facilities such 
as this. The Chief Executive replied that the Broads Authority had approached 
NNDC and confirmed that they had had discussions with the Museum of the Broads 
and were prepared to make a contribution towards a facility there. He said that, 
across the county as a whole, there was only a modest number of changing places 
facilities and the challenge was that they were best located alongside other facilities 
so that there was support and supervision available nearby. Regarding villages in 
the Broads area, he said that they had not been looked at yet as the initial focus had 
been on the 7 principle towns. He said that Norfolk County Council (NCC) had 
unilaterally decided to provide a changing places facility at Wroxham library and they 
were considering additional provision at either Morston or Brancaster quay.  
 
Cllr Dixon sought confirmation that there had been no discussions to date with 
respective parish councils.  The Chief Executive reiterated that the initial focus had 
been on the 7 major settlements in the District and wider discussions had not been 
held. The Chairman added that there had been some discussions about toilet 
provision with Stalham Town Council and he confirmed that Mundesley parish 
council had also approached NNDC on this matter. Cllr Dixon replied that the main 
thrust of his point was that this was a good opportunity to engage with the town and 
parish councils across the District. The primary opportunity for such engagement 
was at officer level and he would like to see more communication and dialogue in 
the future. The Chairman thanked him for his comments and said that the NNDC 
Town & Parish Council Engagement Forum could be a beneficial channel for such 
discussions. Cllr Fredericks concurred, adding that the next one was taking palce on 
4th July and it could be a good time to raise such matters.  
 
It was proposed by Cllr T Adams, seconded by Cllr J Toye and  
 

 
 
 
 
RESOLVED to 
 

 Agree to the officer proposals for the further Changing Places 
investments at the locations identified; 

Page 9



 Agree to the recommended changes to the capital budget identified 
within section 10 the report; and 

 Delegate authority to the Director for Resources to develop and agree 
governance and reporting arrangements with the Broads Authority and 
funding providers.  

 
Reasons for the recommendations: 
 
To allocate the grant funding awarded to various schemes across the district to 
continue with the Council’s investment in Changing Places facilities. 
 

15 CROMER PIER INFRASTRUCTURE WORKS 
 

 Cllr L Shires, Portfolio Holder for Organisational Resources, introduced this item. 
She explained that the report summarised the results of the latest detailed survey of 
Cromer Pier and this had been used to develop a works package for the ongoing 
maintenance of the structure, adding that the works were essential for health and 
safety reasons.  
 
Cllr C Cushing said that the sums involved were sizeable and he queried that the 
details of the proposed costs and overall budget were within an exempt appendix. 
He felt that it was in the public interest to have this information in the public domain. 
Cllr N Dixon supported this, adding that an indicative figure should be in the public 
papers and discussed in open session to ensure full transparency. The Chief 
Executive agreed, saying that the recommended budget envelope could be in the 
public domain and suggested that the figure should be specified when the 
recommendation was taken through to Full Council and included in the public 
agenda.  
 
The Chairman said that the overall project had been discussed previously as part of 
the capital works programme. Cllr R Kershaw confirmed that this was the third phase 
of the works on the Pier. He agreed regarding the transparency of an indicative 
figure.  
 
Cllr A Fitch-Tillett seconded the proposal, saying that it was important to maintain 
the pier as it was a fundamental part of the District’s tourism offer. 
 
It was proposed by Cllr L Shires, seconded by Cllr A Fitch-Tillett and 
 
RESOLVED to 
 

 Approve the award of the contract to the preferred supplier (Supplier A 
as identified within the exempt appendix) and; 

 Recommend to Full Council that a capital budget of £1,134,000 is 
approved to enable the works to be completed,  to be funded from 
capital receipts  

 
Reason for the recommendation 
 
The establishment of the capital budget and completion of the recommended works 
will enable the Council to continue to maintain the pier structure 
 
In order to ensure the structural integrity of the pier for the future it is essential that 
appropriate maintenance is undertaken. 

Page 10



 
16 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 It was proposed by Cllr T Adams, seconded by Cllr J Toye and 

 
RESOLVED that: 
 
Under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of 
Part 1of Schedule 12A (as amended) to the Act. 
 

17 PRIVATE BUSINESS 
 

18 APPROVAL OF INSURANCE CONTRACT 
 

 It was proposed by Cllr A Fitch-Tillett, seconded by Cllr J Toye and 
 
RESOLVED to approve the following option: 
 
Cromer Pier Option 3 
 

1. Approve Option 1 in relation to the insurance for Cromer Pier. 
1. Approve the Zurich insurance tender. 
2. Recommend to Full Council that additional budget provision is made 

for 2022/23 of £81.2k to be funded from the Delivery Plan Reserve if 
required at the year end.  

 
Reason for the decision: 
 
The Council’s current insurance arrangements are due to expire on 30 June 2022 
and it is therefore necessary to enter into a new contract to ensure that the Council 
continues to have adequate cover in place 
 

  
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 11.35 am. 
 
 

 
______________ 

Chairman 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



   

Registering interests 

Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you 
must register with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out 
in Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register  
details of your other personal interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 2 
(Other Registerable Interests). 

 “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means  an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are 
aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 

"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband 
or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 

1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28

days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered

interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.

2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the

councillor, or a person connected with the councillor, being subject to violence

or intimidation.

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with

the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer

agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register.

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable

Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not

participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room

unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not

have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest.

Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate

and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

5. Where  you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is
being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of  your executive function,
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or
further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other

Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You

may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at

the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter

and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it

is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



   

Disclosure of  Non-Registerable Interests 

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest

or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest  set out in Table 1) or a

financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the

interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed

to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you  must not take part in any discussion or vote

on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a

dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of

the interest.

8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects –

a. your own financial interest or well-being;

b. a financial interest or well-being of a  relative, close associate; or

c. a body included in those you need to disclose under Other Registrable

Interests  as set out in Table 2

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the 
meeting after disclosing your interest  the following test should be applied 

9. Where a matter affects your financial interest or well-being:

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it

would affect your view of the wider public interest

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to 

speak at the meeting. Otherwise you  must not take part in any discussion or vote 

on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a 

dispensation. 

If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

10. Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you have
made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must make sure  that any
written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of your interest.

Page 14



    

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the 

Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 

Subject Description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

[Any unpaid directorship.] 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from the 
council) made to the councillor during the 
previous 12-month period for expenses 
incurred by him/her in carrying out 
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards 
his/her election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the 
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract made between the 
councillor or his/her spouse or civil 
partner or the person with whom the 

Page 15

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which 
such person is a partner, or an incorporated 
body of which such person is a director* or 
a body that such person has a beneficial 
interest in the securities of*) and the council 
— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is 
within the area of the council. 
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, 
interest or right in or over land which does 
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or 
civil partner or the person with whom the 
councillor is living as if they were spouses/ 
civil partners (alone or jointly with another) 
a right to occupy or to receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the council; and

(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor,
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the
person with whom the councillor is living as
if they were spouses/ civil partners is a
partner of or a director* of or has a
beneficial interest in the securities* of.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a 
body where— 

(a) that body (to the councillor’s
knowledge) has a place of business or
land in the area of the council; and

(b) either—

(i) ) the total nominal value of the
securities* exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of
more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in
which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were

Page 16



  

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and

provident society.

* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a

collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act

2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building

society.

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests 

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is 
likely to affect:  

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you
are nominated or appointed by your authority

b) any body

(i) exercising functions of a public nature

(ii) any body directed to charitable purposes or

(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion
or policy (including any political party or trade union)

spouses/civil partners has a beneficial 
interest exceeds one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that class. 

Page 17



Guidance on Local Government Association Model Councillor Code of Conduct | Local Government Association

Page 18



 

 

 
 
 

Officer Delegated Decisions (May to June 2022) 
 

Summary: 
 
 
 
Options considered: 

This report details the decisions taken by Senior 
Officers under delegated powers from May to June 2022 
 
 
Not applicable. 
 

  

Recommendations: 
 
 
 
Reasons for  
Recommendations: 
 

To receive and note the report and the register of 
officer decisions taken under delegated powers. 
 
 
The Constitution: Chapter 6, Part 5, sections 5.1 and 
5.2. details the exercise of any power or function of the 
Council where waiting until a meeting of Council or a 
committee would disadvantage the Council. The 
Constitution requires that any exercise of such powers 
should be reported to the next meeting of Council, 
Cabinet or working party (as appropriate) 

 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
(Papers relied on to write the report, which do not contain exempt information and which are not 
published elsewhere) 
 

 

Delegated decision forms – as completed by the relevant officer 
  
 

 
  

Cabinet Member(s) 
All 
 

Ward(s) affected 
All 

Contact Officer, telephone number and email: 
Emma Denny, Democratic Services Manager, 01263 516010 

 
1. Introduction 
 

 
1.1 Officer delegated decision making process. 

Officer delegated decision are available to the public through the website and 
are reported to Members via Cabinet and Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 
The process for reporting and consulting on these decisions is contained in 
the Constitution at Chapter 6, 5.1 and 5.2 and the publication of these 
decisions is a legal requirement.  

 
1.2 The overall list has been revised to only include decisions taken during 2022 

 

2. Consultation 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



 

 

2.1 The Constitution requires that for the exercise of any power or function of the 
Council in routine matters falling within established policies and existing 
budgets, where waiting until a meeting of the Council, a committee or working 
party would disadvantage the Council, an elector or a visitor to the District, 
then the officer exercising the power must consult with the Leader, the 
relevant portfolio holder and if it relates to a particular part of the District, the 
local member.  

 
2.2 For the exercise of any power or function of the Council, which in law is 

capable of delegation, in an emergency threatening life, limb or substantial 
damage to property within the District, the senior officer shall consult with the 
Leader or the Deputy Leader.  
 

2.3 Overview and Scrutiny Committee will receive the delegated decisions list at 
their meetings so they can fully understand why they were taken and assess 
the impact on the Council. 

3. Financial and Resource Implications 

As many of the decisions taken by officers under delegated powers were key 
decisions there is a financial impact.  

4. Legal Implications 

The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 require that all decisions, including 
those taken by officers, must state: 

 

 The decision taken and the date it was made 

 The reasons for the decision 

 Details of options considered and rejected and the reasons why they were 
rejected 

 Declarations of interest and any dispensations granted in respect of 
interests 

Officers taking a decision under delegation are required to complete a form.  

5. Conclusion and Recommendations 

Each decision has been recorded and a summary is provided at Appendix A 

Recommendation: 

Cabinet is asked to receive and note the register of officer decisions 
taken under delegation.  

Page 20



Record of Decisions taken under Delegated Authority       (Appendix A) 

July 2022 

Delegated 
Power being 
exercised;  
 
Chapter 6;  
Full delegation to 
Chief Officers 
 
Section 5.1: routine 
matters  
 
Section 5.2 
Emergency powers 

 

Key 
Decision 
y/n 

Officer 
exercising 
Delegation 

Details of decision made Consultations 
undertaken 
 
Section 5.1 : Leader 
or Portfolio 
Holder/Local 
Member 
 
Section 5.2: Leader 
or Deputy Leader 

Date of 
decision 

Date Reported 
to 
Council/Cabinet  

Section 5.1 Yes Director for 
Communities 

To approve the Council Tax Support 

Scheme for 2022/23 (unchanged from the 

previous scheme)  

 

s 5.2 - Leader 15.02.2022 03.05.2022 

Section 5.1 No Director for 
Resources  

Applying a temporary increase to Officer 
essential and causal car user mileage rates 
to 0.60 per mile.  

 

S 5.1 - Leader 
or Portfolio 
Holder 

24.03.2022 03.05.2022 

Section 5.1 
(Conditional 
Delegation)  

No Chief 
Executive 

Acknowledgement of receipt of grants from 
DEFRA for the Coastal Transition Accelerator 
Programme In North Norfolk 
 

S 5.1 – Leader 
and Portfolio 
Holder 

01.04.2022 03.05.2022 

Section 5.1 No Director for 
Communities 

Award of contract for ‘Green Garden Waste 
Reception, Processing and Disposal Services’ 
to Norse Environmental Waste Services 
(NEWS) Ltd 

S 5.1 – Portfolio 
Holder 

21.04.2020 11.07.2022 

 
Section 5.1 
 

 
No 

 
Director for 
Resources  
 

 
Setting Environmental Services waste 
and cleansing related service charges for 
2022/23. Email conversation and 
approval 23/02/2022.  
 

 

 
S 5.1 – Portfolio 
Holder 

 
23.02.2022 

 
11.07.2022 

 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Long lease at Mundesley Promenade and disposal of land at Beeston Putting 
Green, Sheringham  
 

Summary: 
 
 
Options considered: 

This report outlines lease and disposal proposals in 
connection with the Councils land portfolio.  
 
An alternative option would be not to move forward with 
these transactions, however that would impact on these 
organisations being able to deliver services to the 
community.  
 

Conclusions: 
 

Officers have negotiated two property transactions that 
will enable services delivered to the community to be 
continued.   
  

Recommendations: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reasons for  
Recommendations: 
 

Officers recommend to Cabinet to approve the two 
property transactions as outlined in this report and the 
exempt appendix: 
1. 50 year lease of land for inshore lifeboat at 
Mundesley Promenade  
2. Disposal of land at Beeston Putting Green, 
Sheringham. 
 
For the continuation of community services within the 
district. 
 

 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
(Papers relied on to write the report, which do not contain exempt information and which are not 
published elsewhere) 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
  

Cabinet Member(s) 
Cllr Eric Seward  
 

Ward(s) affected 
Mundesley  
Sheringham  
 

Contact Officer, telephone number and email: Renata Garfoot.  Asset Strategy 
Manager.  Tel 01263 516086. Email. Renata.garfoot@north-norfolk.gov.uk. 
 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This report provides information regarding two property transactions that have 

been negotiated by Officers in relation the Councils land portfolio.  These are:  

Page 23

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 
1.1.1 A long ground lease for Mundesley Inshore Lifeboat at Mundesley 

Promenade.  
1.1.2 Disposal of Beeston Putting Green, Sheringham  

 

 

2. Mundesley Inshore Lifeboat.  
 
2.1 The Mundesley Inshore Lifeboat, a registered charity has been in operation 

since 1972 and is on call 365 days per year, 24 hours a day. A new lifeboat 
station was constructed by them in 2006 on land in the Councils ownership.  
A new 50 year lease is proposed to document the tenant, Mundesley 
Volunteer Inshore Lifeboat’s occupation on the Councils Land and the terms 
can be found in the exempt Appendix.  

 
 

3. Beeston Putting Green, Sheringham  
 
3.1 Sheringham Town Council have utilised land in Sheringham which is known 

at Beeston Putting Green, for over 20 years.  During this time the Town 
Council have undertaken the maintenace and repairs of the site and use an 
operator to deliver putting/golf activities to the community.  
 

3.2 The site is in need of investment to ensure recreational use of the site can 
continue in the future.  Due to the current short term licence arrangements, 
any investment into the site has not been deemed viable and therefore it is 
proposed to dispose of the freehold of the land at a market value to the Town 
Council so that necessary investment can be made.  The disposal would also 
mean the Town Council can secure a longer term arrangement with an 
operator which give greater certainty over continued putting facilities in the 
Town at this location.  
 

3.3 A summary of the terms proposed can be found in the Exempt Appendix.   
 
 

4. Medium Term Financial Strategy 

4.1 The disposal of land at Sheringham will result in a capital sum and details of 
this can be found in the exempt appendix.  There is no material impact on the 
Councils Medium Term Financial Strategy with the lease proposal. 

5. Financial and Resource Implications 

5.1 There are no significant implications to raise.  

6. Legal Implications 

6.1 In relation to Mundesley Inshore Lifeboat a lease has been drafted based on 
terms agreed in principle, by Eastlaw, who have been providing legal advice 
to Council Officers.   

6.2  This is a long term lease which will limit the Councils ability to utilise the land 
for other purposes during this time, however it is recognised that this term 
gives stability and security of tenure to Mundesley Inshore Lifeboat to provide 
a valuable community and tourist service.  

Page 24



 

 

6.3 With regard to the disposal of Beeston Putting Green, Eastlaw will act on 
behalf of the Council with sale transaction.  It is intended to include a 
restricted covenant limiting the use to a putting green, overage clause and 
include a pre-emption which would give the Council the right to have first 
refusal to acquire the property at a market rate if Sheringham Town Council 
decided to sell in the future.  

 

7. Risks 

7.1 The typical asset management risks apply in relation to the proposed lease 
however these can be mitigated with active asset management.  

7.2 Either of the transactions may fail to complete. 

 

8. Sustainability 

8.1 A long lease and disposal will enable these two organisations to continue to 
deliver community and tourism services.  

9. Climate / Carbon impact 

9.1 As both proposals are not generating new uses or activities, it is expected 
that there will be no material change or impact to climate change or the 
Council Net Zero objectives.  

10. Equality and Diversity 

10.1 There are no direct equality or diversity issues from these proposals.  

11. Section 17 Crime and Disorder considerations 

11.1 There are no direct Section17 consideration from these proposals. 
 

12. Conclusion and Recommendations 

12.1 Officers have negotiated two property transactions that will enable services to 
continue to be delivered to the community.   

12.2  Officers recommend to Cabinet to approve the two property transactions as 
outlined in this report and the exempt appendix: 

12.1.1.  50 year lease of land for inshore lifeboat  

12.1.2.  Disposal of land at Beeston Putting Green, Sheringham.  

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Declarations of Interest
	Pages from Model Councillor Code of Conduct 2020 V2 0121
	Guidance on Local Government A_ Local Government Association 41

	8 Officer Delegated Decisions - May to June 2022
	Register of Delegated Decisions - June  2022

	10 Long lease at Mundesley Promenade and disposal of land at Beeston Putting Green, Sheringham
	Exempt Appendix
	Exempt Heads of Terms Disposal Beeston Putting Green




